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The Walasi~-yi Inn is located on U. S. Highway 129 at Neel's Gap, 14
miles south of Blairsville, Georgia, in Union County. It is administered
by Vogel State Park, which 1is surrounded by the Chattahoochee National For-
est. 'The Inn is on the east side of the highway, straddling the crest of
the gap and facing Blood Mountain to the West. A section of the Appalachian
Trail passes between the two sections of the building. Presently, the Inn
is used as a craft and hiker's supply shop and as lodging for the park ranger
who operates the shop and cares for the site.

The Inn is a one-story structure built of native stone on a natural bed
and was constructed by the Civilian Conservation Corps, Camp Sp-2, in coopera-
tion with the Department of the Interior, National Park Service, during 1934-
38. The land on which it stands is part of a parcel given to the .State of
Georgia by Mr. Fred Vogel, Jr. and Mr. August H. Vogel on May 1, 1927. The ori-
ginal gift was of 16 acres, only two of which are at Neel's Gap.

The primary facade of the Inn faces west toward the Highway and parking
area, and is reached by stone steps. The entrance double doors into the foyer
are flanked by two small windows. A flagstone terrace surrounds this western
facade as well, overlooking the valley to the south. Three double glass doors
with transoms open onto the front terrace from the dining area. A large bay
window faces this southern view as well.

An unobstructed rear view of the building is hampered by the rapid rise
in elevation, and the vegetation. However, two large stone .chimneys are at
the rear of the building, one opening into the fireplace nook of the dining
area and one into the kitchen. There is a rear door .from the kitchen opening
onto a small walkway which leads to the trail and the front of the building.
Windows from the restrooms also face this walkway.. There are three windows
in the kitchen and two on either side of the fireplace in the dining room.

The northernmost portion of the building, which is reached by crossing
the Appalachain Trail, is connected to the main building by a covered walkway.
This was originally a wooden structure, built by the Pfister-Vogel Land Company.
It was used as a tea room and for lodging. During the C.C.C. construction, this
structure was veneered with stone to tie in with the other section of the build-
ing. The old tea room became the actual lodging quarters of the Inn. The main
floor had, after renovation, a lounging area and four bedrooms. The basement
floor had two bedrooms, surrounded by a stone terrace facing north, Above the
stone mantel in the lounging area of the old tea room is a memorial plaque in
brass citing the gift of the property by the Vogels. The interior walls are all
panelled with chestnut, and room numbers originally used for guest lodging remain
on the doors. At present, the ranger in charge of the site lives on the main

floor of the building. The basement floor is now used only for storage.
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The main building originally consisted of a foyer with a concessions
counter, a chestnut—panelled dining and lounge area with crossed chestnut
beams and rafters. Beyond the foyer and counter was the kitchen, which also |
opened into the dining room. The foyer now contains vending machines and to-
pographical and other maps of the area. The lounge-dining area is now the crafts
and concessions shop. The kitchen is used primarily for storage at present.

A rough comfort station and rough cabins existed behind the tea room to
the northeast but were demolished during work by the C.C.C. Two log cabins
with water sewerage disposal were built by the C.C.C. a short walk from the gap
on the hillside overlooking the valley to the northeast. These cabins are now
greatly deteriorated.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The significance of the Walasi-yi Inn resides primarily in its architect-
ure and the history of its construction by the Civilian Conservation Corps. The
Inn rests on a site of two acres that was part of a parcel of 16 acres of land
that was given to the State on May 1, 1927 by August H. Vogel and Fred Vogel, Jr.

The State in 1925 completed a highway leading through Lumpkin Courity into
Blairsville in Union County and on to Murphy, N.C. The highway at that time
was a 20 ft. graded road with a 10-ft. paved strip. On the 4th of July, 1925,
a dedication ceremony was held at Neel's Gap, the site of the Inn. The local
newspapers reported that between 3,000 and 4,000 people attended the ceremony,
said to be the largest number that had ever gathered on any mountain in the area.
State Representative Bonnell Stone of Union County had been instrumental in the
conception and construction of the highway. Speeches were presented by Governor
Walker, President J. A. Sharp of Young Harris College, President J. H. Ennis of
the State Senate, Secretary Fred Houser of the Atlantic Convention Bureau and
Chairman John Holder of the State Highway Board.

Until the-highway was built, the gap was known as Frogtown Gap, a name
which had been used since the Cherokee inhabited the area. 'In fact, one his-
torian says that Walasi was.a great mythical frog in Cherokee lore who was the
chieftain of the animal council, and made his home high in thé gap. Frogtown
Gap was changed to Neel's Gap about 1924 in honor of the engineer in charge of
the highway construction.

Near the turn of the century, the Pfister—-Vogel Leather Company of Milwau-
kee, Wisconsin, bought approximately 65,000 acres of land around what is now
Vogel State Park. At that time, tanbark and tanwood from trees were used to
supply tannic acid for the leather company's tanning processes. During World
War I, however, a synthetic tannic acid was developed, saving some of their Geor-
gia forest land from destruction. But the Pfister-Vogel Company also had five
saw mills on their property and participated in logging. The acting director of
the Division of State Parks, in a report issued in 1939, stated that although Vo-
gel was in a section which until recently contained the principal virgin timber
remaining in the east, little evidence of it existed at that time. However, be-
cause little logging had taken place in several years, and because of the inacces-
sibility of many of the higher slopes, there was a mixed stand of pines and hard-
woods and, in many locations, masses of rhodedendron and laurel. Shortly after
the Vogels' first gift to Georgia, the State set aside Vogel State Forest Park.
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In June of 1928, the Vogels donated another tract of 140 acres.
Bonnell Stone, a State Representative from Union County, was employed as
a forester with the Pfister-Vogel Company. A founder and secretary of
the Georgia Forestry Association, he, along with another of the company's
forest rangers, Mr. C. C. Earnest of Cornelia, inspired the donation of
Vogel State Park.

With the beginning of President Roosevelt's Emergency Conservation
Work in 1933, a C.C.C. camp was set up on the eastern side of the highway
at the bottom of the ridge to the north of Neel's Gap. The camp was at
first placed under the State Forestry Department and the United States
Forest Service, Department of Agriculture. In the spring of 1934, the
camp was taken over by the National Park Service, Department of the Interior.
From then until it was closed in 1938, it was used to develop Vogel State
Park as a scenic recreation area. At the site of another Vogel grant of 91
acres, an earthen dam was built and water impounded in a 130-acre lake. Ca-
bins were built here, and this area is now the central lodging area of Vogel
State Park. A picnic area was developed at Notteley Falls, and an overnight
shelter erected at the top of Blood Mountain. A portion of the Appalachian
Trail extended from Neel's Gap to the crest of Blood Mountain, and a three-mile
trail from Notteley Falls to Helton Falls. A system of foot trails was constru-
cted at the park by the C.C.C.

Most of the development work accomplished by the C.C.C. was concentrated
at Neel's Gap, where the stone inn was built, along with two log cabins, a
10,000-gallon, spring-fed reservoir and sewerage system. The stone for the
Inn's construction came from the highway construction. A blight had hit chest-
nut trees in North Georgia beginning in 1925, and many of them had to be cut.
It is probably for this reason that the beautiful chestnut panelling exists in
the Inn. The highway in the gap was relocated toward the west, and the banks
opposite the Inn sloped and landscaped, and the parking area was contructed.
The State Highway Department then surfaced the road and parking area with asphalt.

The Inn was immediately popular. The year after its completion, the State
Parks director recommended that additional bedrooms and servants' quarters be
constructed at the Inn. The State leased the Inn to concessionaires from the
beginning, and it was usually open only from spring through November.
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The coming of World War II and difficulties with lessees probably
prevented the construction of more lodging. Mr. Bonnell Akins of Blairs-—
ville leased the site from 1952 to 1963, although during some of this time
he sub-leased it. He ran a restaurant and lodge during the summer months,
and he indicates that although it was popular, it was never financially successful.

The continued growth of tourism in the North Georgia area and the growing
interest in hiking and outdoor recreation, as well as the history of its construc-
tion, makes the preservation of the Walasi-yi Inn desirable. The site's value to
the state will be enhanced by its nomination to the National Register.

This site is significant, even though it is not yet fifty years old, because
it is an outstanding example of the workmanship of the Civilian Conservation Corps
and needs to be recognized for that now, rather than waiting until another decade
has passed and it has attained the fifty year mark.



Form No. 10-300a
(Rev. 10-74)

UNITED STATLES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM -

CONTINUATION SHEET ITEM NUMBER PAGE

MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES: (continued)

Deed File, Parks and Historic Sites Division, Department of Natural
Resources, State of Georgia.

General Development Outline. Vogel State Park, Division of State Parks,
Historic Sites, and Monuments, State of Georgia; September, 1939.

Master Plan-Report, Vogel State Park. Union and Lumpkin counties, Feb-
ruary, 1937, in records of the National Park Service, Department of the
Interior.

Personal Inspection by Sherry L. Boatright.

GEOGRAPHICAL DATA: (continued)

16th District, Section 1, Union County, on the boundary between lots 37

and 38. The eastern boundary extends 208.7 feet east on a line 14 degrees
30 minutes east from this point north 75 degrees 30 minutes west where it
crosses at 240 feet the boundary line of land lots 38 and 35 and extends

to the right-of-way of the highway. The boundary line follows the right-~
of~way south to where it intersects a line passing south 75 degrees 30 min-
utes east from the point of beginning. The site includes approximately 2
acres.
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K Blairsville vicinity, Union County, Georgia
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